
 

 

Agenda - Children, Young People, and Education 

Committee 
Meeting Venue: 

Video Conference via Zoom 

Meeting date: 23 September 2021 

Meeting time: 09.15

For further information contact: 

Naomi Stocks 

Committee Clerk 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddChildren@senedd.wales
------ 

In accordance with Standing Order 34.19, the Chair has determined that the 

public are excluded from the Committee's meeting in order to protect public 

health. This meeting will be broadcast live on www.senedd.tv 

Registration and private pre-meeting  

(08.45 - 09.15) 

1 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of 

interest 

(09.15)   

 

2 Papers to note 

(09.15 - 09.20)   

 

2.1 Committee Business timetable 

 (Pages 1 - 3)  

Attached Documents:  

Letter from the Llwydd – CYPE(6)-02-21 – Paper to note 1 

2.2 Welsh Government Draft Budget 2022 - 2023 

 (Pages 4 - 7)  

Attached Documents:  

Letter from the Chair of Finance Committee – CYPE(6)-02-21 – Paper to note 

2 

------------------------ Public Document Pack ------------------------



 

 

2.3 Committee forward work programme 

 (Pages 8 - 10)  

Attached Documents:  

Letter from the Welsh Language Commissioner – CYPE(2)-02-21 – Paper to 

note 3 

2.4 Priorities for the Children, Young People and Education Committee 

 (Pages 11 - 12)  

Attached Documents:  

Letter from the Chair of the Children, Young People and Education 

Committee – CYPE(6)-02-21 – Paper to note 4 

2.5 General scrutiny of the Minister for Education and Welsh Language 

 (Pages 13 - 14)  

Attached Documents:  

Letter from the Chair of the Children, Young People and Education 

Committee to the Minister for Education and Welsh Language - CYPE(6)-02-

21 – Paper to note 5 

2.6 General scrutiny of the Minister for Health and Social Services 

 (Pages 15 - 16)  

Attached Documents:  

Letter from the Chair of the Children, Young People and Education 

Committee to the Minister for Health and Social Services - CYPE(6)-02-21 – 

Paper to note 6 

2.7 Joint working with the Children, Young People and Education Committee in 

the Sixth Senedd 

 (Page 17)  

Attached Documents:  

Letter from the Chair of the Equality and Social Justice Committee – CYPE(6)-

02-21 – Paper to note 7 

2.8 Committee Business timetable 

 (Pages 18 - 20)  



 

 

Attached Documents:  

Letter from Llywydd to the Chair of the Health and Social Care Committee - 

CYPE(6)-02-21 – Paper to note 8 

2.9 Curriculum for Wales 

 (Pages 21 - 24)  

Attached Documents:  

Letter from Ymgyrch Hanes Cymru – CYPE(6)-02-21 – Paper to note 9 (Welsh 

Only) 

Translation - CYPE(6)-02-21 - Paper to note 9 

2.10 Priorities for the Children, Young People and Education Committee 

 (Pages 25 - 29)  

Attached Documents:  

Letter from the Federation of Small Business (FSB) Wales – CYPE(6)-02-21 – 

Paper to note 10 

2.11 Priorities for the Children, Young People and Education Committee 

 (Page 30)  

Attached Documents:  

Letter from Letter from Psychologists for Social Change – CYPE(6)-02-21 – 

Paper to note 11 

3 Motion under Standing Order 17.42(ix) to resolve to exclude the 

public from the meeting for agenda items 4 and 5 

(09.20)   

 

4 Consideration of the Legislative Consent Memorandum on the 

Skills and Post-16 Education Bill 

(09.20 - 09.30) (Pages 31 - 46)  

Attached Documents:  

Background paper 



 

 

Legal advice Note 

Research Brief 

5 Committee preparation for the scrutiny session with the Minister 

for Education and Welsh Language 

(09.30 - 09.55)   

 

6 General scrutiny session with the Minister for Education and Welsh 

Language 

(10.00 - 11.30) (Pages 47 - 92)  

Jeremy Miles MS, Minister for Education and Welsh Language  

Owain Lloyd, Director - Education Directorate  

Huw Morris, Group Director - Skills Higher Education and Lifelong Learning 

(SHELL) 

Attached Documents:  

Research Brief 

Paper 1 - Welsh Government written evidence 

7 Motion under Standing Order 17.42(ix) to resolve to exclude the 

public from the remainder of this meeting and for items 1 to 4 at 

the meeting on the 7 October 

(11.30)   

 

8 Consideration of the evidence from the scrutiny session with the 

Minister for Education and Welsh Language 

(11.30 - 11.45)   

 

Lunch break  

(11.45 - 12.30) 



 

 

9 Committee training session on safeguarding, facilitated by the 

NSPCC 

(12.30 - 15.30)   

 



14 July 2021 

Dear Chair 

Committee Timetable 

I am writing to inform you of the Committee Timetable agreed by Business 

Committee at its meeting of 13 July.  

 The Business Committee has agreed a timetable that provides committees with 

fortnightly meetings, with the exception of the Legislation Justice and 

Constitution Committee which meets weekly due to the need to consider Statutory 

Instruments to strict deadlines.  

 A key message from the Chair’s Forum of the Fifth Senedd was to ensure that 

there is flexibility within the arrangements for committees so that peaks in 

workload, or new tasks, can be managed. The Business Committee has sought to 

introduce this flexibility by varying the meeting time allocated to different 

committees. This reflects the type of work that different committees might need 

to undertake and reflects how working practices have evolved in recent years. 

To this end, the timetable is fortnightly and has a number of additional meeting 

slots available within it, to accommodate peaks in the work of particular 

committees e.g. the Finance Committee when considering a draft budget, or a 

committee with Stage 1 legislative scrutiny responsibilities. By under-committing 

the timetabling capacity, there are greater opportunities for committees to work 

together as the possibility of membership clashes in each meeting slot is reduced. 

Jayne Bryant MS 

Chair 

Children, Young People and Education Committee 

CYPE(6)-02-21 - Paper to note 1 

Pack Page 1

Agenda Item 2.1



 

 

In recognition of the known and expected legislative scrutiny responsibilities of 

some committees, the following committees are provided with a double meeting 

slot i.e. a morning and afternoon slot on a Thursday: 

• Children, Young People, and Education; 

• Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure; 

• Economy, Trade, and Rural Affairs; and 

• Health and Social Care. 

The remaining committees are provided with a single meeting slot i.e. one 

morning or afternoon meeting slot per fortnight. These committees are: 

• Culture, Welsh Language, Communications, Sport, and International 

Relations; 

• Equality and Social Justice; 

• Finance; 

• Local Government and Housing; 

• Petitions; 

• Public Accounts and Public Administration; and 

• Standards of Conduct. 

In order to provide some additional capacity for Bill scrutiny work, Fridays are also 

made available for committee Stage 2 scrutiny of Bills i.e. to provide an additional 

(and potentially longer) meeting for committees at this stage of the legislative 

process. The Business Committee will determine the allocation of any additional 

slots following a request from a committee. 

 The Business Committee has already indicated its intention to keep timetabling 

under review, so that it can respond to the needs of committees as the tasks they 

face change. Flexibility and responsiveness is at the heart of its decisions around 

timetabling for committees, and the Business Committee intends to review the 

committee structure and timetable around Easter 2022. 

Yours sincerely  

 

Pack Page 2



 

 

Elin Jones MS 

Y Llywydd and Chair of the Business Committee 

Pack Page 3



Chair, Children, Young People, and Education 
Committee 
Chair, Health and Social Care Committee 
Chair, Economy, Trade, and Rural Affairs Committee 
Chair, Climate Change, Environment, and 
Infrastructure Committee 
Chair, Equality and Social Justice Committee 
Chair, Culture, Communications, Welsh Language, 
Sport, and International Relations Committee 
Chair, Local Government and Housing Committee 

16 July 2021 

Dear Committee Chairs 

Financial Scrutiny 

At our meeting on 8 July 2021, the Finance Committee (the Committee) 
considered the programme of engagement for the forthcoming Welsh 
Government’s Draft Budget and our approach to scrutiny. I am writing to all 
Chairs of subject committees to share our thinking.  

Timetable 

In accordance with Standing Orders, the Trefnydd has written to the Business 
Committee setting out that the Draft Budget will be published on 20 December 
2021 and the annual Budget motion considered in Plenary on 8 February 2022. 

The Business Committee consulted with us on the proposed timetable. As noted 
in the Trefnydd’s letter, the Chancellor of the Exchequer has indicated his 
intention to conduct a multi-year comprehensive spending review (CSR), which 
means the Welsh Government will not know its budget settlement until the CSR 
concludes in the autumn.  

CYPE(6)-02-21 - Paper to note 2 

Pack Page 4

Agenda Item 2.2

https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s116782/Letter%20to%20Business%20Committee%20from%20the%20Minister%20for%20Rural%20Affairs%20and%20North%20Wales%20and%20Trefnydd%20regar.pdf
https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s116782/Letter%20to%20Business%20Committee%20from%20the%20Minister%20for%20Rural%20Affairs%20and%20North%20Wales%20and%20Trefnydd%20regar.pdf
https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s116785/Letter%20from%20Business%20Committee%20regarding%20Budget%20timetable%202022-23%20-%207%20July%202021.pdf


 

I have written to the Business Committee to express our disappointment that the 
Draft Budget will be published in the Christmas recess. Whilst we appreciate the 
proposed timetable is due to the timing of the UK Government’s CSR, this will be 
the third consecutive year that the proposed timetable has reduced the time 
available for scrutiny by the Senedd. 

Budget focus 

The Committee has agreed to continue the approach followed in previous 
Senedds, whereby budget scrutiny is centred on the four principles of financial 
scrutiny: affordability, prioritisation, value for money and process. The principles 
are:  

• Affordability - to look at the big picture of total revenue and expenditure, 
and whether these are appropriately balanced;  

• Prioritisation - whether the division of allocations between different 
sectors/programmes is justifiable and coherent; 

• Value for money - essentially, are public bodies spending their allocations 
well – economy, efficiency and effectiveness (i.e.) outcomes; and 

• Budget processes - are they effective and accessible and whether there is 
integration between corporate and service planning and performance and 
financial management. 

The Committee would be grateful if your budget scrutiny follows these principles. 

Engagement Approach 

The Committee will be considering its approach to engagement on the Draft 
Budget early in the autumn term. We would like this engagement to 
complement and inform the work of policy Committees. I would welcome 
discussing this individually with Chairs, or at the Chairs’ Forum. 

Following the practice in previous Senedds, the Committee is happy to undertake 
a consultation on behalf of all Committees. Given the proposed timetable, we 
consider it would be most suitable to issue our consultation at the start of the 
autumn term.  

The Clerk to the Finance Committee will notify your Committee Clerks once the 
consultation has been issued and I would appreciate your assistance in promoting 
the consultation via your own communication tools to encourage and engage 
with a wider audience. The provisions in relation to the reporting by policy 
committees changed in 2017, and you are now able to report in your own right (if 
you so wish), and your reports can be used as a supporting document to the Draft 
Budget debate.   

 

 

Pack Page 5

https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s116784/Letter%20to%20Business%20Committee%20regarding%20Budget%20timetable%202022-23%20-%2014%20July%202021.pdf


 

Finance Committee-led priorities debate  

The Finance Committee of the Fifth Senedd recommended that a future Finance 
Committee should hold an annual debate on the Welsh Government’s spending 
prioritises to allow Members the opportunity to debate and potentially influence 
spending priorities prior to the Draft Budget being published.  

This year the Welsh Government scheduled its own debate on Priorities for 2022-
23 Budget Preparations, which took place on Tuesday 13 July. The Committee 
wrote to the Minister for Finance and the Business Committee to seek agreement 
that in future years this will be a Finance Committee-led debate that takes places 
annually before summer recess, which the Minister and Business Committee have 
agreed to. In future years we would hope to undertake a public engagement 
exercise to inform this debate, and I would welcome your thoughts on how the 
Committees that scrutinise the Draft Budget can work together to gather the 
views of the public on what they feel should be the Welsh Government’s spending 
priorities. 

Financial scrutiny of legislation 

The Committee’s core function is to undertake financial scrutiny of the Welsh 
Government and associated public bodies, however, financial scrutiny should be 
embedded into the scrutiny work undertaken by all Committees. The Committee 
now has limited time available and many statutory obligations to fulfil. Therefore, 
we have agreed to initially consider each Bill that is introduced into the Senedd to 
determine whether we will carry out scrutiny of the financial implications of a Bill  
depending on the levels of costs and transparency contained within the 
Regulatory Impact Assessment (RIA). Should we decide not to undertake financial 
scrutiny of a particular Bill we will write to the relevant Stage one scrutiny 
committee to identify any points of interest that the Committee may wish to 
consider when reporting on the general principles of the Bill.  

As this is the start of a new Senedd, I hope we can take the opportunity to explore 
ways of working collaboratively with other Committees to ensure the most 
effective financial scrutiny of the Welsh Government. I would like to suggest that 
we discuss this in further detail at a meeting of the Chairs’ Forum. 

If you have any questions about any aspect of the Draft Budget process, please 
feel free to contact me or the Clerk to the Finance Committee, Bethan Davies, 
0300 200 6372, seneddfinance@senedd.wales.  

Yours sincerely 

Pack Page 6

https://record.senedd.wales/Plenary/12323#A66435
https://record.senedd.wales/Plenary/12323#A66435
https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s116757/Letter%20to%20Business%20Committee%20and%20the%20Minister%20for%20Finance%20and%20Local%20Government%20regarding%20the%20debate%20.pdf
https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s116757/Letter%20to%20Business%20Committee%20and%20the%20Minister%20for%20Finance%20and%20Local%20Government%20regarding%20the%20debate%20.pdf


 

 

  

Peredur Owen Griffiths MS 
Chair of the Finance Committee 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Pack Page 7



Aled Roberts 
Comisiynydd y Gymraeg 
Welsh Language Commissioner 

01/03 

Jane Bryant MS 
Chair 
Children, Young People and Education Committee 

SeneddPPIA@senedd.cymru 

19 July 2021 

Dear Ms Bryant 

Considering the Welsh language in the Committee’s work 

I am writing to you at the beginning of the sixth Senedd term to urge you to ensure that the 

Committee gives full consideration to the Welsh language in all aspects of its work.  

In the Cymraeg 2050 Welsh Language Strategy the Welsh Government announced the 

vision of reaching a million Welsh speakers and increasing the percentage who speak 

Welsh daily to 20%. The strategy includes milestones to measure the success of its 

achievement, with the first milestone in 2021 and the next in 2026. During the sixth 

Senedd term it will be necessary to take a serious approach to holding the Government to 

account for the extent to which the Strategy is being achieved and the milestones reached. 

In that respect it is vital that the Welsh language is mainstreamed into wider legislation and 

policy and I am concerned that there is insufficient scrutiny of the impact of wider 

legislation and policy on the Welsh language in general. Indeed, Eluned Morgan, the 

previous Minister for Mental Health, Wellbeing and the Welsh Language, stated in a 

scrutiny session: 

… I would suggest that actually, rather than just holding me to account when it comes to 

the budget, […] that actually you ask the other Ministers, who’ve got huge amounts of 

money, what they’re doing within their budgets in relation to the Welsh language.” 

(Culture, Welsh Language and Communications Committee meeting, 25 February 2021) 

CYPE(6)-02-21 - Paper to note 3 

Pack Page 8

Agenda Item 2.3

mailto:SeneddPPIA@senedd.cymru


 02/03 

I should emphasise that the Welsh language should not be seen as a cultural issue alone 

as it is a living language in all communities in Wales and a main language in many of 

them. Those communities face a number of social and economic challenges that in turn 

challenge the viability of the Welsh language in those communities. 

 

The Commissioner published a manifesto document1 for the 2021 election stating that a 

wide range of factors affecting the Welsh language need to be considered. Many of these 

are very relevant to education. With regard to the committee’s remit, the document makes 

many recommendations in relation to childcare and education, from the early years 

onwards to the pos-16 sector: 

• Give support to settings currently offering provision mainly through the medium of 

English to offer provision in Welsh; and introduce incentives for childcare settings 

that offer a Welsh-medium or significantly bilingual provision.  

• In order to facilitate recommendation 5, develop a specific and ambitious strategy 

for developing the Welsh language skills of the childcare and early years education 

workforce which builds on the current Camau programme and provide funding to 

deliver the strategy. 

• Develop a strategy to ensure that initial teacher education training courses develop 

Welsh language skills for all prospective teachers. As well as improving and 

sustaining the skills of those who already speak Welsh, teacher training courses 

need to improve the skills and increase the confidence of those with some Welsh, 

and to provide basic skills to those who have little or no Welsh at the start of the 

training process.  

• Create a specific funding programme for realising the objectives of the Welsh in 

Education Strategic Plans.  

• Review and revise travel regulations and guidance to facilitate access to Welsh-

medium childcare, statutory education and post-16 education, ensuring equity for 

learners and families who wish to receive Welsh-medium education across Wales.  

• Give guidance and funding towards moving schools along the language continuum, 

ensuring an increase in the proportion of the curriculum taught through the medium 

of Welsh.  

• A policy commitment to fully support and fund the Coleg Cymraeg Cenedlaethol's 
Further Education and Apprenticeship Welsh-medium Action Plan'.  

• Building on the current Work Welsh scheme, develop a comprehensive long-term 

programme to improve the Welsh language skills of the further education and work-

based learning workforce so that a significant percentage of students in key areas 

learn through the medium of Welsh. The programme should include methods for 

teaching bilingually and should enable the release of staff for extended periods to 

 
1 Manifesto (positif.wales) 

Pack Page 9

https://positif.wales/wp-content/uploads/2020/09/Welsh-Language-Commissioner-2021-Manifesto-3.pdf


 03/03 

master the Welsh language as well as recruiting more Welsh speaking staff to the 
sector. 

The challenge for the new Government will be to act radically to ensure that we are on 

the right track to meet the 2050 targets and I believe that the committee has a vital role 

to play in the effort of ensuring that it does so. 

I hope that you will bear these comments in mind as you consider the committee’s 

future work. I wish you every success in that work and look forward to contributing to it. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

Gwenith Price 
Deputy Welsh Language Commissioner 

 

 

 

 

Pack Page 10



 

 

20 July 2021 

Dear Chairs, 

Children and young people’s priorities for the Sixth Senedd 

As the Senedd Committee responsible for scrutinising all matters relating to children and young 

people, it is our intention to ensure that the voices of children and young people are heard as a 

matter of course in our Committee’s work. At our first meeting on 14 July, we agreed that this would 

be a key priority for us. 

In order to inform our strategic planning and forward work programme, we intend to undertake a 

programme of tailored and meaningful engagement with children and young people. This work will 

begin in the autumn term. Our initial focus will be on asking children and young people what they 

think the priorities of the Sixth Senedd should be.  

Y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc 
ac Addysg 
— 
Children, Young People  
and Education Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddPlant@enedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddPlant 

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddChildren@senedd.wales 

senedd.wales/SeneddChildren 
0300 200 6565 

To:  

Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure Committee 

Culture, Communications, Welsh Language, Sport, and International Relations Committee 

Economy, Trade, and Rural Affairs Committee 

Equality and Social Justice Committee 

Finance Committee 

Health and Social Care Committee 

Legislation, Justice and Constitution Committee 

Local Government and Housing Committee 

Petitions Committee 

Public Accounts and Public Administration Committee 

CYPE(6)-02-21 - Paper to note 4 

Pack Page 11

Agenda Item 2.4

mailto:SeneddCYPE@senedd.wales


Given that the range of views held by children and young people will be of relevance to your 

respective committee remits, we will ensure that the results of this activity are shared with you, to 

ensure that your work can take account of their opinions. Our Committee team will ensure that your 

teams are kept up to date on the plans as they develop, and will confirm timescales in due course.  

Kind regards, 

Jayne Bryant MS 

Chair 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg | We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Pack Page 12



 

 

 

Date: 10 August 2021 

Subject: Autumn ministerial session 

Dear Jeremy, 

Thank you for agreeing to attend a meeting of the Children, Young People and Education Committee 
on 23 September 2021. The session will be an invaluable opportunity to discuss your priorities and key 
areas of work as they relate to the Committee’s remit. 

To that end, I would be grateful if you could provide written information to the Committee to support 
the meeting. Please could you provide us with a paper no later than 9 September setting out the 
following as they relate to the Committee’s remit: 

 Your priorities and key areas of work.

 Relevant Programme for Government activities and commitments within your portfolio,
including those where you are listed as the ‘lead portfolio Minister’; those within your
portfolio but listed as the responsibility of the ‘full Cabinet’ and how you will co-ordinate
and integrate across the whole of government to deliver these; and indicative steps and
timelines for the delivery of these activities and commitments.

 Planned primary legislation.

 An update on the latest position regarding the short to medium-term implications of
COVID-19 for the education sector and the operation of schools, colleges and universities
from September 2021, including any contingency plans should the pandemic cause further
widescale disruption to attendance at educational settings.

Y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc 
ac Addysg 
— 
Children, Young People  
and Education Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddPlant@enedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddPlant 

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddChildren@senedd.wales 

senedd.wales/SeneddChildren 
0300 200 6565 Jeremy Miles MS 

Minister for Education and Welsh Language 
By email 

CYPE(6)-02-21 - Paper to note 5 

Pack Page 13

Agenda Item 2.5



 

 

 An update on the medium to long-term educational recovery from COVID-19 and the 
progress and emerging challenges associated with the Renew and Reform plan published 
in June 2021 (including an update on the forthcoming post-16 recovery implementation 
plan referred to in the Renew and Reform document). 

 Your approach to lifelong learning policy and its coordination with the Minister for 
Economy. 

 Your approach to the funding and implementation of the 2017 Reid Review 
recommendations given that some aspects of implementation now sit in both your 
portfolio and the portfolio of the Minister for Economy. 

 How you intend to adopt a children’s rights approach to all decisions and how the voices 
of children and young people will influence your decisions, as recommended by the 
Children, Young People and Education Committee of the Fifth Senedd. 

As you may be aware, we are currently undertaking a general consultation to seek views on what our 
priorities should be during the Sixth Senedd. We will also be engaging with children and young 
people in the autumn term to gather their views directly. 

Yours sincerely, 

 

Jayne Bryant MS 

Chair 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Pack Page 14

https://business.senedd.wales/mgConsultationDisplay.aspx?id=426&RPID=1259821215&cp=yes


 

 

 

Date: 10 August 2021 

Subject: Autumn ministerial session 

Dear Eluned, 

Thank you for agreeing to attend a meeting of the Children, Young People and Education 
Committee, along with the Deputy Minister for Social Services and the Deputy Minister for Mental 
Health and Wellbeing, on 7 October 2021. The session will be an invaluable opportunity to discuss 
your priorities and key areas of work as they relate to the Committee’s remit. 

To that end, I would be grateful if you could provide written information to the Committee to support 
the meeting. Please could you provide us with a paper no later than 23 September setting out the 
following as they relate to the Committee’s remit: 

 Your priorities and key areas of work.

 Relevant Programme for Government activities and commitments within your portfolio,
including: those where you are listed as the ‘lead portfolio Minister’; those within your
portfolio but listed as the responsibility of the ‘full Cabinet’ and how you will co-ordinate
and integrate across the whole of government to deliver these; and indicative steps and
timelines for the delivery of these activities and commitments. The Committee would also
welcome an outline of how you intend to work with the Deputy Minister for Social Services
and Deputy Minister for Mental Health and Wellbeing, including details of the lines of
responsibility for delivering the commitments within this Committee’s remit.

 How you intend to give due regard to children and young people’s rights to good physical
and mental health in the context of the Programme for Government healthcare

Y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc 
ac Addysg 
— 
Children, Young People  
and Education Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddPlant@enedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddPlant 

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddChildren@senedd.wales 

senedd.wales/SeneddChildren 
0300 200 6565 

Eluned Morgan MS 
Minister for Health and Social Services 
By email 

CYPE(6)-02-21 - Paper to note 6

Pack Page 15

Agenda Item 2.6



 

 

commitments (such as those to provide treatments which have been delayed by the 
pandemic, reform primary care, and prioritise investment in - and redesign of - mental 
health support). 

 How the voices of children and young people will influence your decisions, as 
recommended by the Children, Young People and Education Committee of the Fifth 
Senedd. 

 Planned primary or significant secondary legislation within the Committee’s portfolio, to 
include an update on the plans for implementing the Children (Abolition of Defence of 
Reasonable Punishment) (Wales) Act 2020 and confirmation of the timescale for section 
1―which abolishes the common law defence of reasonable punishment―coming into 
force in Wales. 

As you may be aware, we are currently undertaking a general consultation to seek views on what our 
priorities should be during the Sixth Senedd. We will also be engaging with children and young 
people in the autumn term to gather their views directly. 

Yours sincerely, 

 

Jayne Bryant MS 

Chair 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Pack Page 16

https://business.senedd.wales/mgConsultationDisplay.aspx?id=426&RPID=1259821215&cp=yes


10 August 2021 

Dear Jayne,  

Joint working with the Children, Young People and Education Committee in the Sixth Senedd 

As the Senedd committee responsible for scrutinising all aspects of equality, social justice, and the 

Well-Being of Future Generations Act, our broad remit includes a number of important cross-cutting 

issues of mutual interest and potential joint working. 

I would like to invite you to consider  opportunities for joint working as part of any strategic planning 

discussions you may be having in your Committee in the autumn term.  

Early work on women in the workplace 

I want to make you aware that the Committee has agreed to scope out work on the impact of 

COVID-19 pandemic on women in the workplace. The negative consequences of the pandemic have 

fallen disproportionately on women, particularly working women with caring responsibilities, and this 

is likely to lead us to have a detailed look at the availability and affordability of childcare. We will be 

giving further consideration to this area of work in the autumn and I would be happy to provide you 

with more information as these plans develop.  

In the meantime if your Committee has any ideas for joint working you would like to discuss, please 

contact the clerking team. 

Yours sincerely, 

Jenny Rathbone MS  

Chair of the Equality and Social Justice Committee 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

 Y  Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb  
a Chyfiawnder Cymdeithasol 
 — 
 Equality and Social Justice  
Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddCydraddoldeb@senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddCydraddoldeb  

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddEquality@senedd.wales 

senedd.wales/SeneddEquality  
0300 200 6565 

Jayne Bryant MS 

Chair of the Children, Young People and Education 

Committee  

CYPE(6)-02-21 - Paper to note 7

Pack Page 17

Agenda Item 2.7



 

 

16 August 2021 

Dear Llywydd 

Sixth Senedd committee timetable 

Thank you for your letter of 14 July 2021 regarding the Sixth Senedd committee timetable. As Business 

Committee intends to keep the timetable under review, I am writing to outline the initial views of 

Health and Social Care Committee members. We will, of course, be happy to provide further 

feedback in due course to inform Business Committee’s review. 

I am copying this letter to Jayne Bryant MS in her capacity as Chair of the Children, Young People and 

Education Committee. 

Fortnightly meeting slots and ‘protected weeks’ 

We plan to devote some time early in the autumn to developing a strategic approach to our remit; 

this will include considering how we will prioritise the formal meeting time available to us. 

Nevertheless, we have some initial concerns about the potential impact of the timetable on our ability 

to organise our work flexibly, to move swiftly, and to work with agility to respond to emerging issues 

or undertake time critical activity. 

For example, we note that the combination of fortnightly meetings and protected weeks means that 

we will have significantly fewer meetings and less total meeting time than our predecessor committee 

would have had in the 1.5 meetings per fortnight pre-pandemic Fifth Senedd committee timetable. 

Similarly, while the total meeting time available to us will be broadly similar to the time available to 

our predecessor within the pandemic timetable, the move to fortnightly meetings may constrain the 

flexibility of our work programme, our ability to respond to emerging issues, and the potential to 

accommodate stakeholder availability without detriment to the pace of our work or the rigour of our 

evidence-gathering and scrutiny. 

Y Pwyllgor Iechyd a  
Gofal Cymdeithasol  
— 
Health and Social Care 
Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddIechyd@senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddIechyd 

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddHealth@senedd.wales 

senedd.wales/SeneddHealth 
0300 200 6565 

Llywydd 

Chair, Business Committee 

CYPE(6)-02-21 - Paper to note 8 

Pack Page 18

Agenda Item 2.8



 

 

All day meetings 

The majority of Health and Social Care Committee members represent constituencies or regions in 

North Wales or Mid and West Wales. At our first meeting, we discussed some of the practical issues 

arising from the allocation of all day meeting slots, including potential fatigue and wellbeing issues 

associated with lengthy virtual or hybrid meetings, and the travel time associated with hybrid or 

physical meetings for Members who represent constituencies and regions some distance from Cardiff 

Bay. 

While we intend to be flexible in our meeting times according to the requirements of the Committee’s 

business, we do not believe that it will be viable routinely to meet beyond 15.00 on Thursday 

afternoons. 

Potential to request additional formal meeting slots 

We welcome the indication that the Business Committee intends to look favourably on requests from 

committees for additional formal meeting slots to accommodate peaks in workloads or new tasks. We 

consider that this would be appropriate to accommodate work in respect of the timescales or 

completion of which committees have limited discretion, for example pre-appointment hearings or 

referrals by Business Committee of Bills or LCMs. We also note that we have flexibility, subject to 

Members’ availability and Commission resources, to undertake informal activity outside of the formal 

timetable; although it would not be appropriate or transparent for all activity that would otherwise 

take place in formal meetings to be conducted informally. 

In addition, we note that there is limited scope in the weekly timetable for such additional Health and 

Social Care Committee activity to be scheduled. This reflects Members’ other committee, Commission 

and Plenary commitments, and the need for time to be available for preparation for formal business 

and for Members’ other important responsibilities. For example, we note with particular concern the 

proposal that Fridays—which have traditionally been reserved for Members’ constituency and 

regional commitments—should routinely become part of the formal Senedd business timetable to 

accommodate legislative scrutiny. 

Sharing a meeting slot with the Children, Young People and Education Committee 

We welcome the potential opportunities that sharing a meeting slot with the CYPE Committee 

provides in terms of joint working on areas of mutual interest. However, while the two committees will 

try where possible to avoid placing conflicting demands on our shared stakeholders, the increased 

rigidity in our work programmes as a result of the fortnightly timetable may make this more difficult. 

We anticipate that the shared meeting slot may have a particularly acute impact on the Minister for 

Health and Social Services and her two Deputy Ministers, especially during peak times such as the 

annual scrutiny of the Welsh Government’s draft budget. However, the Ministers are accountable to 

both committees, and I would expect them to take account of the constraints of the committee 

Pack Page 19



 

 

timetable, to be flexible in accommodating requests to give evidence, and to prioritise committee 

requests over other activities. 

Notwithstanding the issues outlined above, I welcome the confirmation in your letter that the Business 

Committee intends to keep flexibility and responsiveness at the heart of its decisions around 

timetabling for committees. I hope that the reflections of Health and Social Care Committee members 

are of assistance in this. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Russell George MS 

Chair, Health and Social Care Committee 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Pack Page 20



YMGYRCH HANES CYMRU
  
                            

Jane Bryant 
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg 
Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd 
Caerdydd 
CF99 1NA 

17 Awst 2021 

Annwyl Jane Bryant, 

Hanes Cymru a Chwricwlwm 2022 

Dros y blynyddoedd diwethaf, bu Ymgyrch Hanes Cymru yn mynegi pryder am y diffyg sylw a 
roddir i hanes Cymru mewn nifer o ysgolion Cymru. Roeddem yn siomedig fod Llywodraeth 
Cymru wedi gwrthod argymhelliad yn adroddiad y Pwyllgor Diwylliant, y Gymraeg a 
Chyfathrebu (a gyhoeddwyd ym mis Tachwedd 2019) y dylai’r Cwricwlwm i Gymru 2022 
gynnwys canllaw yn nodi corff cyffredin o wybodaeth fel modd o sicrhau fod hanes Cymru’n 
cael ei gyflwyno’n effeithiol. 

Sylweddolwn fod Cwricwlwm i Gymru 2022 yn nodi’r angen i ddysgu am hanes Cymru a bod 
Kirsty Williams, tra’n Weinidog Addysg wedi pwysleisio hynny. Rydym yn siŵr eich bod 
chithau’n rhannu’r dyhead hwnnw. 

Serch hynny, mae’r sefyllfa hanesyddol o ddiffyg sylw i hanes Cymru (gweler, er enghraifft, 
adroddiad tasglu Dr Elin Jones yn 2013) yn golygu bod prinder adnoddau a bod diffyg 
gwybodaeth am, a dealltwriaeth o, hanes Cymru ymysg rhai athrawon. Mae angen 
gweithredu clir a phendant i sicrhau bod amcanion Cwricwlwm 2022 yn cael eu gwireddu o 
ran cyflwyno hanes Cymru’n gyflawn ac yn gyson yn holl ysgolion Cymru.  

Mewn ateb (cyf TO/KW/06465/20) i lythyr a ddanfonwyd gennym at y Gweinidog Addysg 
bryd hynny, dyddiedig 11 Tachwedd 2020, nodir nifer o ddatganiadau pwysig. Dyfynnaf isod 
o’r ateb hwnnw ynghyd â chwestiynau yr wyf wedi eu gofyn i’r Gweinidog Addysg 
presennol. 

Bydd ysgolion yn cael cymorth i ymgysylltu â gweithwyr treftadaeth proffesiynol, 
amgueddfeydd ac orielau, yn ogystal ag arweinwyr cymunedol a diwylliannol wrth 
gynllunio eu cwricwlwm. 

Sut ac ym mha fodd yr estynnir y cymorth yma? 

CYPE(6)-02-21 - Papur i'w nodi 9

Pack Page 21

Agenda Item 2.9



Yn gynharach eleni (sef 2020) cynhaliodd Llywodraeth Cymru adolygiad o’r holl adnoddau 
sydd ar gael ar hyn o bryd i gefnogi addysgu hanes Cymru mewn ysgolion, er mwyn nodi 
unrhyw fylchau yn yr adnoddau hynny. 

A yw canlyniadau’r adolygiad yma ar gael yn gyhoeddus? A oes rhestr neu gatalog o 
adnoddau wedi ei lunio? Pa fylchau a ganfyddwyd a pha fesurau a gymerwyd i lenwi’r 
bylchau hynny? 

Bydd Estyn hefyd yn adrodd i Lywodraeth Cymru ar ei adolygiad o addysgu hanes ac 
amrywiaeth Cymru mewn ysgolion y flwyddyn nesaf. 

Tra’n sylweddoli bod y pandemig wedi effeithio ar ddulliau gweithio Estyn, a fydd yr 
adroddiad hwn yn cael ei gyflwyno yn 2021? Os na fydd, beth yw’r amserlen ar gyfer yr 
adolygiad a pha bryd y gellir disgwyl adroddiad gan Estyn? 

penodwyd yr Athro Charlotte Williams OBE, i gadeirio Gweithgor Cymunedau, Cyfraniadau 
a Chynefin: Profiadau pobl dduon ac Asiaidd a lleiafrifoedd ethnig a’r cwricwlwm newydd.  

Yn ein llythyr dyddiedig 11 Tachwedd roeddem yn galw am sefydlu gweithgor tebyg i edrych 
ar y modd y cyflwynir hanes Cymru. A fyddwch yn sefydlu gweithgor o’r fath? 

Ym mis Hydref (2020) cyhoeddodd y Gweinidog . . . y bydd cynllun gweithredu yn cael ei 
ddatblygu ar gyfer y cwricwlwm ac y bydd rhwydwaith cenedlaethol o ymarferwyr a 
rhanddeiliad yn cael ei sefydlu. 

A yw’r cynllun gweithredu y cyfeirir ato wedi cael ei ddatblygu? A ydyw ar gael yn 
gyhoeddus? A oes rhwydwaith o ymarferwyr a rhanddeiliaid wedi ei sefydlu? 

Caiff cynllun gweithredu ei gyhoeddi yn fuan yn amlinellu’r prif heriau wrth weithredu’r 
cwricwlwm . . . 

A yw’r cynllun gweithredu wedi ei gyhoeddi? Os ydyw, beth oedd y prif heriau a 
ganfyddwyd? Sut y bwriedir ymdrin â’r heriau hynny? 

 
Os yw hanes Cymru yn mynd i gael ei ddysgu’n effeithiol, mae Ymgyrch Hanes Cymru o’r 
farn bod angen gweithredu pendant gan y Gweinidog a’r llywodraeth i sicrhau bod 
adnoddau digonol, bod hyfforddiant a chyngor ar gael yn ôl yr angen a bod gan athrawon ac 
ysgolion yr amser a’r gefnogaeth i gynllunio’n llawn.  

Gofynnwn felly i chi fel Pwyllgor Craffu i ofalu bod y Gweinidog a’r llywodraeth yn sicrhau 
bod hynny’n digwydd. 

Edrychaf ymlaen at dderbyn eich ymateb. 

Yn gywir 

Eryl Owain – ar ran Ymgyrch Hanes Cymru 

   

 

Pack Page 22



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Ff/T 029 2074 7406  C/A 1 Cleeve House,

E  wales.policy@fsb.org.uk Lambourne Crescent,  

W  fsb.wales Caerdydd, CF14 5GP  

Swyddfa Gofrestredig | Registered Office:  

National Federation of Self Employed and Small Businesses Limited,  

Sir Frank Whittle Way, Blackpool Business Park, Blackpool, FY4 2FE   

25 August 2021 

Children, Education and Young People Committee 
Senedd 
Pierhead St,  
Cardiff  
CF99 1SN 

Dear Ms. Bryant 

RE: Priorities for the Committee 

FSB Wales is the authoritative voice of businesses in Wales, with around 10,000 members. It campaigns for a better 
social, political, and economic environment in which to work and do business. With a strong grassroots structure, a 
Wales Policy Unit and dedicated Welsh staff to deal with Welsh institutions, media and politicians, FSB Wales makes 
its members’ voices heard at the heart of the decision-making process.  

FSB welcomes the opportunity to respond to the Committee’s call for views on its priorities. Committees serve a 
vital role in providing scrutiny of the government, in providing a key role in influencing policy development, and as a 
constructive engagement point for evidence and understanding between the legislature and civil society, including 
our role in representing small businesses.  

With continuing issues arising from Covid-19, the possibility of further disruptions, and the legacy of the damage 
the pandemic has wrought alongside the impetus to build an economic recovery, the role of committees will be of 
even more importance this term.  

As such, insofar as possible, it is important that the Senedd’s capacity and abilities are used to the full in this 
process, and that the structure allows committees – and their Chairs - to be agile and able to respond quickly to 
events this Winter, as well as in providing scrutiny and policy development for the challenges ahead. It is in the 
spirit of supporting this democratic process and committees as the engine room of Welsh democracy that we 
respond to this consultation. 

The Committee covers areas of priority for FSB Wales and we look forward to working with you over the coming 
term. 

CYPE(6)-02-21 - Paper to note 10 

Pack Page 25

Agenda Item 2.10



 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Ff/T 029 2074 7406  C/A 1 Cleeve House,                                                

E  wales.policy@fsb.org.uk   Lambourne Crescent,  

W  fsb.wales   Caerdydd, CF14 5GP  

Swyddfa Gofrestredig | Registered Office:  

National Federation of Self Employed and Small Businesses Limited,  

Sir Frank Whittle Way, Blackpool Business Park, Blackpool, FY4 2FE   

 

         

 

 

Ways of Working  

We note that the new Committees structure includes the following: 

• The Sixth Senedd has for the moment opted for smaller membership in committees (4-6).   
• This should allow members to build more specialism, but at the cost of more diverse voices in each 

committee (as was the case with larger committees).   
• It is important to push for the advantages of building focused specialism is nurtured and maximised, but the 

diversity and small pool is mitigated (e.g., through cross-committee working).   
Potentially, this structure could allow for more agility which as there may well remain issues arising requiring quick 
reaction, policy response and scrutiny over the next period, could be extremely useful. This would require 
significant autonomy for committees to pursue their own path and ways of working.  

However, the decision has also been taken to cut the number of committee meetings to be fortnightly rather than 
weekly.   

• Smaller committees should allow MSs being able to populate across them better, but fewer meetings do 
not seem to add value in this respect.   

• There are also dangers to scrutiny and policy development – the role of scrutiny (legislative and non-
legislative) as we open up after Covid is important, with myriad issues across all policy areas important. 
Committees have an important role in this respect and halving the time for scrutiny in a stroke makes little 
sense. This is a particular issue for small business issues, as we are concerned that vital areas of economic 
recovery may not be properly addressed or scrutinised.  

• There is a danger that the pressure will force committees to focus on necessary legislative scrutiny alone, 
while relegating wider scrutiny and policy inquiries to the margins (including on business issues and day to 
day issues around Covid, for example).   

• Some committees have wide and disparate subject areas, and there is a danger that whole policy areas will 
be relegated to the side-lines.   

• As well as being the engine room of democratic scrutiny of Government, committees are a vital interface 
for contact and policy evidence form civil society – there is a danger that the pool of evidence is further 
narrowed, and a focus is on the narrower ‘usual suspects’ providing evidence positing a danger of group-
think and less diverse views being taken in oral evidence.  
 

• As noted above, committees will need to be agile in continuing to respond to Covid and the various issues 
raised by the pandemic will continue to impact for the Senedd term. These limits on their work may 
mitigate against that and undermine responsive policy development and scrutiny. As such, it makes sense 
to allow autonomy for Committees to pursue their own ways of working, including additional meeting and 
inquiries. As such, the two-week meetings should be seen as a baseline rather than a ceiling for activity and 
scrutiny.  

 

Pack Page 26



 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Ff/T 029 2074 7406  C/A 1 Cleeve House,                                                

E  wales.policy@fsb.org.uk   Lambourne Crescent,  

W  fsb.wales   Caerdydd, CF14 5GP  

Swyddfa Gofrestredig | Registered Office:  

National Federation of Self Employed and Small Businesses Limited,  

Sir Frank Whittle Way, Blackpool Business Park, Blackpool, FY4 2FE   

 

         

 

Cross-committee working will be vital to mitigate against small committees meaning a greater focus but a danger of 
silo working and loss of diverse offices bringing in a range of policy field lenses and understanding how they 
intersect. We therefore encourage cross committee inquiries as a minimum (and suggestions later in paper on 
subjects that span committees).   

It is also possible to look at ways as a regular way of working and ensuring policy span through MSs from different 
committees could sit as non-voting ‘guests’ or bringing committee expertise and lens to particular meetings 
(e.g., climate change members sitting in on discussions on housing capital spending policy).    

This way of working will also be important in terms of scrutiny of the substance and operation of Welsh 
Government – through the Climate Change Ministry as a central organising department looking to ensure cross 
departmental and holistic working, it is important that Senedd is able to mirror this and provide adequate scrutiny 
across policy areas accordingly.  

Business concerns sit across many departments, and within intersecting policy subjects so cross-committee working 
is important for FSB and our members.   

  

Recommendations  

• That committees are allowed freedom (as decided unanimously by all their members) to look at the 
fortnightly meetings as a baseline and so can organise more meetings as suits them or for specific inquiries.  
 

• We would urge a view to cross committee working on intersecting subject areas and inquiries – and that 
these can be on top of the fortnightly meetings.  
 

• To mitigate against small committees being a small pool we would urge that committees can co-
opt other MSs (including possibly spokespeople retain a right to attend and question) as non-
voting members for individual sessions, and to be encouraged and incentivised to do so. These could also be 
as members of other committees to encourage cross sectoral views.  
 

• It is vital, with continuing uncertainty on Covid over the Winter months (as well as ongoing issues and its 
legacy) that Committees are able to react with agility to raise issues, conduct inquiries and scrutinise 
reactively and quickly as needed. Committees and their Chairs should be able to do this with as much 
autonomy as possible over their schedules and ways of working (with necessary checks of unanimity in 
committee as appropriate). 

 

FSB’s key policy areas of work for the Committee 

A key area of work here is scrutiny and policy development around the Guarantee of Offer for Education, 
Employment or Training to under 25s in the Programme for Government. Currently we are not aware of greater 

Pack Page 27



 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Ff/T 029 2074 7406  C/A 1 Cleeve House,                                                

E  wales.policy@fsb.org.uk   Lambourne Crescent,  

W  fsb.wales   Caerdydd, CF14 5GP  

Swyddfa Gofrestredig | Registered Office:  

National Federation of Self Employed and Small Businesses Limited,  

Sir Frank Whittle Way, Blackpool Business Park, Blackpool, FY4 2FE   

 

         

 

detail. It is important for our members to understand if this is to be a meaningful offer how it relates to training and 
apprenticeships and how any scheme would be easily accessed and used by SMEs across the whole of Wales, in 
order to ensure that opportunities are available to young people and to businesses with proper support. 

The role of entrepreneurship in education, how it aligns with the wider curriculum and its aims of making ‘informed 
and critical citizens’ is an ongoing interest, as well as how we understand the changing needs of the next generation 
of young entrepreneurs and business support mechanisms required to help provide opportunities for them. The 
role of work-related experiences and the practical experiential side of education, as well as the fostering of key 
skills is also a key concern for SMEs, and in future entrepreneurship.  

FSB have upcoming work on Generation Z entrepreneurship, which we will share with the committee when 
available. 

 

Subject areas for Joint working with other committees 

Our suggestions above advocate a dynamic and agile role in co-working and cross committee working, utilising all 
the backbench capacity and capabilities as much as possible, and reducing possible silos in policy scrutiny and 
development. The following list gives some indications of possible areas of work, although this is not exhaustive list, 
and priorities will be necessarily shaped by wider issues of Welsh Government priorities and external factors such 
as Covid-19 and Brexit. Working iteratively with other committees will also shape framing of subject areas, and we 
believe this would generally be positive for inquiries and scrutiny. 

 

Subject area Possible partner committee(s) 
Implications and opportunities of Guarantee of 
Offer for Education, Employment or Training to under 
25s 

Economy, Trade and Rural Affairs Committee 
 
 

Entrepreneurship and Young People – including 
Business Support, Entrepreneurship in Education and 
next generation of entrepreneurs 

Economy, Trade and Rural Affairs Committee 
 
 

  
 

 

FSB Wales would welcome the opportunity to discuss this issue with your officials, should you deem it 
useful.  

Yours sincerely, 
 

Pack Page 28



 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Ff/T 029 2074 7406  C/A 1 Cleeve House,                                                

E  wales.policy@fsb.org.uk   Lambourne Crescent,  

W  fsb.wales   Caerdydd, CF14 5GP  

Swyddfa Gofrestredig | Registered Office:  

National Federation of Self Employed and Small Businesses Limited,  

Sir Frank Whittle Way, Blackpool Business Park, Blackpool, FY4 2FE   

 

         

 

 
Ben Cottam 
Head of Wales 
FSB  
 
 

Pack Page 29



CYPE(06)-02-21 - Paper to note 11 

Dear Members of the CYPE Committee, 

Please could I table the below for the committee's consideration at your earliest convenience. The 
Families First programme has provided great benefit to the children and families of Wales. In some 
areas there has been a move towards integrated work between the FF programme and CYP mental 
health services. Thus bringing together health and early intervention approaches within the FF 
service framework. Strengthening the capacity of these approaches further.    

Firstly we would like to make you aware of this work and also share with you the following 
supporting information for this approach. Both Psychologists for Social Change Cymru and the British 
Psychological society have called for integrated psychological (or mental health) and poverty 
approaches given the integrated nature of these issues. Below is the 1) PSC Cymru manifesto, 2) BPS 
manifesto, 3) a model for building community resilience and wellbeing, 4) a paper on the social 
determinants of MH and 5) an article about Gwent Community Psychology (partnering with FF).  

1 Elections 2021 (psychchange.org) 

2 Briefing paper: from poverty to flourishing - foundations for the best start in life | BPS 

3 Building Resilience and Community Wellbeing (psychchange.org) 

4 https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/29852822/ (SDMH)  

5 https://thepsychologist.bps.org.uk/volume-33/october-2020/poverty-flourishing-towards-2021  

Many thanks for your time and consideration in these issues. 

Yours faithfully,  

Dr Jen Daffin, Chair PSC Cymru 

Pack Page 30

Agenda Item 2.11

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.psychchange.org%2Felections-2021.html&data=04%7C01%7CSian.Thomas%40assembly.wales%7Cc719bc7ecc4943ff4f9408d95e41615c%7C38dc5129340c45148a044e8ef2771564%7C0%7C0%7C637644457166603647%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=CBHNkDfQfQ3g937bIE%2BMdL8aJI3yHJhqMgMBhfSrf8k%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.bps.org.uk%2Fnews-and-policy%2Fbriefing-paper-poverty-flourishing-foundations-best-start-life&data=04%7C01%7CSian.Thomas%40assembly.wales%7Cc719bc7ecc4943ff4f9408d95e41615c%7C38dc5129340c45148a044e8ef2771564%7C0%7C0%7C637644457166613604%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=IRnu%2FY8HzBqjKSNLFxRq1vuSaxFocjGxGc3JvtQouwE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.psychchange.org%2Fbuilding-resilience-and-community-wellbeing.html&data=04%7C01%7CSian.Thomas%40assembly.wales%7Cc719bc7ecc4943ff4f9408d95e41615c%7C38dc5129340c45148a044e8ef2771564%7C0%7C0%7C637644457166603647%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=RuCFkUZhngk2Lr%2FznXp2wRpjbDoZiKr3BQvywLNngSA%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.psychiatrictimes.com%2Fview%2Faddressing-poverty-and-mental-illness&data=04%7C01%7CSian.Thomas%40assembly.wales%7Cc719bc7ecc4943ff4f9408d95e41615c%7C38dc5129340c45148a044e8ef2771564%7C0%7C0%7C637644457166613604%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=%2FzkJNWgz3hopnBqqxXTpnuehIg%2BeUOC%2FW5MPPb9OHiE%3D&reserved=0
https://thepsychologist.bps.org.uk/volume-33/october-2020/poverty-flourishing-towards-2021


Document is Restricted

Pack Page 31

Agenda Item 4By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 33

By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 42

By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 47

Agenda Item 6By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



1 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE EDUCATION COMMITTEE – 23 SEPTEMBER 

EVIDENCE PAPER 

This paper sets out: my priorities and key areas of work for the 6th Senedd; plans 
and progress in relation to delivery of legislation and Programme for Government 
commitments; the approach to dealing with and recovering from the COVID-19 
pandemic; the approach to lifelong learning; an update on the implementation of the 
Reid Review; and the role and voice of children and young people. 

Priorities and key areas of work 

Education creates opportunities and changes lives. It’s essential for our economy 
and can help create a fairer and more equal society. Our priority is to put the well-
being and progression of learners at the heart of everything we do, in line with the 
Well-being and Future Generations Act.  

Covid recovery - as we recover from the pandemic we must ensure our education 
system emerges stronger than ever. Our Renew and Reform plan published in June 
2021 set out how we will target £150m of additional investment to support learners 
and practitioners as we manage our recovery. We are determined that the emphasis 
placed on well-being and flexibility in the education system over the last year is built 
upon and closely aligned with the introduction of the exciting new curriculum. 

Education reforms - we will continue a programme of reform which includes our 
world-leading curriculum, vital funding and governance changes in tertiary education 
and stronger leadership at every level of the education system to realise the 
transformational benefits of the Curriculum for Wales.  

Supporting all learners - we will work with children and young people, their families 
and the education workforce to ensure the best outcomes for learners, particularly 
the most vulnerable and work together to close the attainment gap, raise the 
aspirations of our learners and better bridge the digital divide  

Creating One Million Welsh Speakers - the Welsh language is a unique and 
important part of our national life. We will work with partners and individuals across 
Wales to encourage people to learn or use their Welsh on a daily basis, strengthen 
and increase our Welsh language education provision and support the language to 
thrive in communities across Wales. 

Programme for Government  
Annex A details the Programme for Government 2021 to 2026 commitments within 
the Education and Welsh Language portfolio. It outlines indicative steps and 
timescales and explains in brief terms how we will coordinate and integrate across 
the whole of government to deliver these commitments. 

CYPE(6)-02-21 – Paper 1

Pack Page 67



2 
 

 
Legislation 
 
Tertiary Education and Research (Wales) Bill 
 
The Welsh Government is committed to continuing its long-term programme of 
education reform to ensure educational inequalities narrow and standards rise. 
Having all aspects of tertiary education and research under one body is vital to 
achieve this.  
Following close working with stakeholders, the Tertiary Education and Research 
(Wales) Bill which establishes a new Commission for Tertiary Education and 
Research in Wales will be introduced. It will have extensive funding, planning and 
regulatory powers, to improve quality, efficiency and efficacy across the PCET and 
research sector. It will have the interests of learners at its heart, and will work 
collaboratively with stakeholders and education providers to improve individual and 
national outcomes.  
 
Welsh Medium Education Legislation  
 
A commitment has been made in the Programme for Government to bring forward a 
Welsh Medium Education Bill in this Term. The purpose of the Bill will be to 
strengthen and increase the provision of Welsh-medium education across Wales in 
order to meet targets in Cymraeg 2050.  
 
Subordinate legislation has been strengthened which will support Welsh-medium 
education through theWelsh in Education Strategic Plans (WESP). A consultation on 
non-statutory guidance in relation to school categories according to Welsh-medium 
provision has been undertaken. Further work on effective delivery of WESPs will be 
undertaken. 
 
Youth Services Legislation  
 
The Programme for Government sets out several commitments in relation to youth 
services including legislating for a new framework for youth services in Wales. Once 
the report of the Interim Youth Work Board is published in September 2021, we will 
consider the findings  and how they can help realise the Programme for Government 
commitment. 
 
 
COVID-19 
 
School, college and higher education operations 
 
On 27 August we published the local COVID-19 Infection Control Decision 
Frameworks for schools, colleges and HE. In developing these frameworks we 
engaged closely with local authorities, colleges, trade union representatives and 
public health officials.  
 
The Frameworks set out arrangements for the delivery of learning, enabling schools, 
colleges, work-based and adult learning providers and HE to tailor interventions to 

Pack Page 68



3 
 

reflect local risks and circumstances. It consists of core measures that should be in 
place, regardless of the risk level, and variable measures that may be tailored to 
reflect the level of risk identified. They will be supported by public health officials and 
local authorities to ensure measures are appropriate to their circumstances. 

The guiding principles at the heart of these Frameworks are to: 

 enable education to operate as ‘business as usual’ as far as possible; 

 secure the best outcomes for all learners by considering both their educational 
needs and wellbeing; 

 manage the ongoing risks of COVID-19 as safely as possible as for other 
infections, and ensure clarity of actions required if there is a case in a school or 
college. 

The approach set out in the Frameworks should be adopted as soon as possible 
after the start of term, and by 20 September 2021 at the latest. Local authorities will 
be discussing with schools how this approach will be embedded into their operational 
arrangements, ensuring that staff, learners and the wider education community 
understand the measures in place in their school. 

There is a potential risk of further disruption to learning as winter approaches; there 
is likely to be increased winter viruses along-side possible pressures from Covid-19. 
Whilst there are changes in guidance, there continues to be an emphasis on the 
importance of key measures aimed at minimising the impact of these potential 
pressures in all settings. The evolving public health situation will continue to be 
closely monitored. 
 
Recovery – Renew and Reform 
 
The Renew and Reform plan outlined the Welsh Government’s response to the 
impacts of COVID-19 on learners and learning. Recognising the different impacts of 
the pandemic on learners, the plan committed to working with partners to develop 
and deliver over £150m of support for learners’ well-being and progression. It builds 
on the successful interventions and initiatives deployed over the last year, including 
retaining and supporting more than 1,800 full-time equivalent staff recruited under 
the Recruit, Recover, and Raise Standards programme. 
 
Forming part of the £150m, crucial support during the summer break has been 
provided via a £4.55m funding allocation to local authorities as part of the ‘Summer 
of Fun’. Local authorities have worked with partners to deliver a range of funded 
play, sporting and cultural activities, available in Welsh and English. This has 
supported the physical, mental and emotional well-being of children and young 
people aged 0-25, aligned with other important initiatives like the School Holiday 
Enrichment Programme and the Playworks Programme. A further £450,000 has 
been allocated to develop pilots for sporting and cultural activities to run alongside 
the school day, in partnership with Sports Wales and Arts Council of Wales. 
 
Over £7 million is being invested to offer term-long placements to eligible newly 
qualified teachers (NQTs). Working closely with the regions and the Education 
Workforce Council (EWC), over 400 NQTs have been matched with schools. 

Pack Page 69

https://gov.wales/renew-and-reform-supporting-learners-wellbeing-and-progression-html


4 
 

Commencing in September. NQTs on the scheme will benefit from a period of 
continuous employment in one school. Recognising the challenge of ensuring all 
NQTs receive the high-quality support and professional learning throughout their 
induction period, an enhanced induction professional learning programme will run 
throughout the 2021/22 academic year. The placement scheme will provide schools 
with additional capacity, enabling them to support learner recovery and the 
development of the Curriculum for Wales. 
 
Other priorities include measures to support workforce well-being and contingency 
plans for continuity of learning in the event of further disruption. A more detailed 
formal update is due to be published by 23 September 2021. 
 
Lifelong learning 
 
The Welsh Government is committed to expanding lifelong learning opportunities as 
part of our wider strategic vision for the Post-Compulsory Education and Training 
Sector, which was published in November 2020.  
 
The Tertiary Education and Research Bill will include new provisions which will 
advance the commitment to lifelong learning.  
 
A review of Adult Education to increase participation is a key commitment in the 
Programme for Government. It will seek to make improvements and increases to 
adult learning across sectors. The current Policy Statement for Adult Learning in 
Wales 2017 supports adult learning and the provision of Essential Skills, and is 
primarily targeted at Further Education Institutions and the Adult Learning Network.   
 
Expanding Personal Learning Accounts (PLA) is a joint Ministerial portfolio 
responsibility with the Minister for Economy. All courses and qualifications delivered 
through the PLA programme are endorsed by Regional Skills Partnerships to ensure 
the provision meets regional skills needs and addresses skills gaps. A £2 million pilot 
commenced in September 2019 via two colleges, Grwp Llandrillo Menai and Coleg 
Gwent. For the 2020/21 academic year, the PLA pilot was merged with the Skills 
Development Fund becoming a £12m ‘Personal Learning Account Programme’. The 
PLA programme then benefitted from an additional £5.39m to take the total 
academic year allocation for 2021/22 to £17.39m. Of the £17.39m, £2m has been 
allocated to the overall programme funding to support training and skills in the 
‘green’ economy, including green construction and electric and hybrid vehicle 
technology. Similar initiatives are anticipated in future. 
 
Discussions are taking place with a range of policy leads across Welsh Government, 
including foundational economy, logistics, decarbonisation and childcare to see how 
the PLA offer and provision might support these sectors. 
 
Reid Review – implementation and funding 
 
The Welsh Government has made good progress in implementing some of the 
recommendations from the Reid Review, most notably the repurposing of the 
London office to focus on promoting the excellent research and innovation activity in 
Wales and improving inter-Government engagement on policy matters. 

Pack Page 70

https://gov.wales/post-compulsory-education-and-training-strategic-vision
https://gov.wales/post-compulsory-education-and-training-strategic-vision
https://gov.wales/new-college-courses-jobs-green-economy
https://gov.wales/new-college-courses-jobs-green-economy


5 
 

Work is underway to develop a new cross Government Innovation Strategy to reflect 
that, post Brexit, there is an increasingly pressured financial position, with the loss of 
ERDF monies and also, the Welsh Government’s need to focus innovation effort 
towards recovery and growth, in the wake of the Covid-19 pandemic. Professor 
Reid’s review is one source of evidence which will inform this work. 
 
In line with the recommendation from the Diamond Review, the Welsh Government 
has continued to maintain levels of Quality Research funding awarded to HEFCW. In 
2019, additional revenue funding of £15m was provided to HEFCW to further support 
reforms arising from the Welsh Government response to the Diamond Review and 
recommendations contained in the Reid Report, including £7.5m for Research Wales 
Innovation Funding to enable HEFCW to bring forward its plans to reintroduce 
funding for innovation and knowledge transfer. 
 
 
Children’s rights approach 
 
Wales has led the way in children’s rights by enshrining them in law through The 
Rights of the Children and Young Persons (Wales) Measure 2011.  There is a 
commitment to empowering children and young people, ensuring that their voices 
will continue to influence those decisions that affect them; this includes informal 
engagement, discussion and participatory ways of working, or through more formal 
avenues, including consultation. In taking key decisions, and through an integrated 
approach to impact assessment, the impact of those decisions on children and 
young people will be assessed in the context of children’s rights.  
 
Following the wide ranging and in-depth inquiry into Children Rights by the previous 
Senedd’s Children, Young People and Education Committee in August 2020, a 
number of the Committee’s recommendations were included within the revised 
Children’s Rights Scheme (CRS). The draft CRS was published by the Welsh 
Government for consultation in December 2020. An overview of the feedback 
received from stakeholders and children and young people was published in June 
2021. The CRS is currently being revised and should be published during autumn 
2021. 
 
The CRS sets out the intention to develop a participation strategy to ensure children 
and young people are provided with meaningful opportunities to express their 
views.  The Welsh Government provides annual funding to Children in Wales and 
this enables children and young people to have their views heard by Ministers and 
policy makers through the ‘Young Wales’ programme and other participation activity. 
 

 
 

Pack Page 71

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2021-06/summary-of-responses_1.pdf


1 
 

CYPE COMMITTEE – 23 SEPTEMBER            ANNEX A 

This document details the Programme for Government 2021 to 2026 commitments within the Education and Welsh Language 

portfolio under responsibility of the First Minister and full Cabinet [blue], and under responsibility of the Minister for Education and 

the Welsh Language [green]. It outlines indicative steps and timescales for delivery and explains in brief terms how our intended 

approach to coordinating and integrating the cross-cutting commitments.] 

Programme for Government 
2021 to 2026 Commitment 

Indicative steps and timelines Coordination and integration 

Continue our long-term programme of education reform, and ensure educational inequalities narrow and standards rise 

We will make sure nobody in Wales is left behind after the coronavirus pandemic, repairing the damage done over the last year. 
We will continue a programme of reform which includes our world-leading curriculum, vital funding and governance changes in 
tertiary education, stronger leadership at every level of the education system and a commitment to lifelong learning. We will work 
with children and young people, their families and the education workforce to ensure the best outcomes for learners, particularly 
the most vulnerable. 

Fund up to 1800 additional 
tutoring staff in our schools 

Recruit Recover and Raise Standards (RRRS) 
programme 

 New cycle of LA reporting and summation 
reporting – from September 2021 

 New funding arrangements and modelling 
and adjustments to funding formula as 
required – from Spring 2022 

 
Formal evaluation timeline 

 Evaluation begins – Autumn 2021 

 Interim report – Spring 2022 

 Final report – Summer 2022 

The RRRS programme is integrated in the 
Welsh Government’s education COVID-19 
recovery plan, Renew and reform: 
supporting learners’ wellbeing and 
progression, and its supporting governance. 
The independently chaired internal Renew 
and Reform programme board includes 
officials across schools, post-16 and 
childcare.  
 
The Renew and Reform programme plan 
outlines how Welsh Government will work in 
partnership with the education profession 
and other stakeholders to ensure we are 
aligned to the common priorities set out in 
our response to the pandemic. We will listen 

P
ack P

age 72

https://gov.wales/renew-and-reform-supporting-learners-wellbeing-and-progression-html
https://gov.wales/renew-and-reform-supporting-learners-wellbeing-and-progression-html
https://gov.wales/renew-and-reform-supporting-learners-wellbeing-and-progression-html


2 
 

Programme for Government 
2021 to 2026 Commitment 

Indicative steps and timelines Coordination and integration 

to the voices of our learners so our children 
and young people have a say in the policies 
that affect them most and we will support 
leaders in schools to determine the right 
approach to support the needs of their 
learners.  

Build on our School Holiday 
Enrichment Programme (SHEP) 

Following the summer 2021 programme, 
where we provided £4.85million to enable up 
to 8,000 places, we will consider how best to 
further extend the scheme once the final 
evaluation of the programme is available later 
in autumn 2021. With this in mind we have 
used some funding to extend SHEP into 
schools which do not meet the free school 
meal scheme criteria to test support for the 
scheme and to act as case studies to inform 
future decisions. We expect to agree plans for 
2022 by December this year. 

The Welsh Government works closely with 
delivery partners such as the WLGA to 
maximise the benefit of the programme.  

Continue to meet the rise in 
demand for Free School Meals 
resulting from the pandemic and 
review the eligibility criteria, 
extending entitlement, as far as 
resources allow 

The Welsh Government has allocated an 
additional £83.3million since the start of the 
pandemic to provide free school meals. 
Provisional Pupil Level Annual School Census 
(PLASC) 2021 data indicates that the total 
number of pupils eligible for free school meals 
(of all ages in maintained schools and 
including those who are transitionally 
protected) has risen to over 108,000. This 
represents an increase of 18,000 pupils in a 
year.   

As part of the review, work is underway to 
establish the policy and cost implications. 
This includes ongoing discussions with 
external partners, including the Bevan 
Foundation and Policy in Practice. The 
review will be informed by research and 
evidence, such as that commissioned / 
undertaken by them and the Wales Anti-
Poverty Coalition. As the review progresses, 
further engagement work will be undertaken 
as appropriate with stakeholders.  

P
ack P

age 73



3 
 

Programme for Government 
2021 to 2026 Commitment 

Indicative steps and timelines Coordination and integration 

 
Officials have begun a review of the eligibility 
criteria. We anticipate the review will conclude 
in the autumn/winter. An update will be 
provided to the Senedd in September.   

Invest in the learning 
environment of community 
schools, co-locating key 
services, and securing stronger 
engagement with parents and 
carers outside traditional hours 

We plan to undertake a policy review which 
will inform a future work plan, goals and 
context around community schools.  
Our efforts will focus on how community 
schools can support improved attainment, 
aspirations, wellbeing and educational 
outcomes for all learners. This will include a 
scoping exercise to define the characteristics 
of a community school and explore how we 
can better engage families and the wider 
community.  

Taking forward this commitment will involve 
considerable cross government working 
across Education and a number of other 
portfolios, such as Social Justice.  

Explore reform of the school day 
and the school year 

Through engagement and discussion with the 
education sector, and other stakeholders such 
as our social partners, we will explore the 
potential for reform of the school day and 
year. Activity is expected to focus around a 
number of key priorities, including learner and 
staff wellbeing; narrowing inequalities; and 
continuing to raise standards for all.  

The programme of work is integrated within 
our Renew and Reform plans and its 
governance.  

Develop a sustainable model for 
supply teaching that has fair 
work at its heart 

During autumn 2021, we will review models 
which exist in other jurisdictions and identify 
potential options for further development 
through engagement with social partners.  
 

Taking forward this commitment will involve 
discussions with Local Government 
colleagues around potential implications for 
local government, as well as with the 
National Procurement Service in relation to 

P
ack P

age 74



4 
 

Programme for Government 
2021 to 2026 Commitment 

Indicative steps and timelines Coordination and integration 

We will work with stakeholders to understand 
the implications of alternative models within 
the current supply model context in Wales, 
and by summer 2022 we will aim to have 
identified the scope of a sustainable model 
and the actions required to support it. 
 
The legacy arrangements, potential 
requirement for legislation, and need for an 
orderly transition, is likely to mean any 
significant changes being realised in the third 
year of this Senedd term. 

the supply framework and colleagues 
leading on social partnership and fair work. 

Take the Tertiary Education and 
Research (Wales) Bill through 
the Senedd 
 
 

Welsh Government is committed to expanding 
lifelong learning opportunities as part of our 
wider strategic vision for the Post-Compulsory 
Education and Training (PCET) Sector, which 
was published in November 2020.  
 
Following consultation last year we intend to 
introduce a revised Tertiary Education and 
Research Bill in the Senedd in the autumn. 
The Bill will include new provisions which will 
advance our commitment to lifelong learning 
and we will be working closely with 
stakeholders over the coming years to 
develop the finer detail of this commitment in 
advance of the establishing of the new 
Commission for Tertiary Education and 
Research in 2023.  
 

Officials across a number of Welsh 
Government departments are and will be 
engaged in the delivery of this commitment. 
The Bill has the interests of learners at its 
heart and includes provisions to ensure the 
voices of all post-16 learners are heard 
through a Learner Engagement Code.  
 
The Bill will allow the Commission and 
Welsh Ministers to shape the tertiary 
education in Wales to meet the demands of 
learners and employers.  

P
ack P

age 75

https://gov.wales/written-statement-strategic-vision-post-compulsory-education-and-training-sector-wales


5 
 

Programme for Government 
2021 to 2026 Commitment 

Indicative steps and timelines Coordination and integration 

Our long-term programme of education reform 
will make sure nobody in Wales is left behind 
after the pandemic, and this legislation will 
further demonstrate our commitment to 

lifelong learning. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Push forward towards a million Welsh speakers, and enable our tourism, sports and arts industries to thrive 

The arts, tourism and sport are of vital importance to both the Welsh economy and to our national life, and the Welsh language is 
a national treasure which belongs to every individual in Wales. We will widen access to our heritage, harness the creativity and 
sporting ability of people in Wales, and ensure that these industries have the support they need to maintain their proper place on 
the world stage. 

Establish a National Music 
Service  

Proposals for a sustainable pathway for 
education in music for Wales are currently 
being developed for Ministerial consideration 
with a decision expected in Autumn 2021. 

 
Education officials are working closely with 
the Culture, Sport and Tourism Department, 
and a range of key stakeholders (including 
via a Music Education Group) consisting of 
representatives from WLGA, the Arts 
Council of Wales, all local authority music 
services as well as other music 
organisations such as Royal Welsh College 
of Music and Drama, National Youth Arts 
Wales, and regional education consortia. 
 

P
ack P

age 76



6 
 

Programme for Government 
2021 to 2026 Commitment 

Indicative steps and timelines Coordination and integration 

Legislate to strengthen and 
increase our Welsh language 
education provision 

The Welsh Government has committed to 
prepare a Bill for introduction in this Senedd 
term to support equitable access to Welsh-
medium education and remove barriers by 
bringing coherence to and enabling effective 
planning of Welsh-medium education.  
 

A Bill project board will be established 
reporting into the Legislative Programme 
Board and is expected to engage with 
partners via the Welsh Language 
Partnership Council education sub-group.  

Lead Wales in a national civic conversation about our constitutional future, and give our country the strongest possible presence 
on the world stage 

Wales is a confident and outward-looking country, and we know that issues such as the coronavirus pandemic, climate change 
and globalisation cannot be solved without our friends and allies in Europe and beyond. We will build and strengthen our global 
relationships, celebrating different cultures and embracing internationalism. We will work for a new and successful United 
Kingdom, pressing the UK Government for reform. 

Put in place a £65million 
international learning exchange 
programme  

 
 
 
 
Current schedule: 

 Delivery organisation established - July 
2021 (complete) 

 Programme Strategy published - 
December 2021 

 Applications Open - March 2022 

 Mobilities begin - September 2022 
 
 
 
 
 

This cross-cutting commitment will be led by 
Skills, Higher Education and Lifelong 
Learning, working closely with pre-16 
education officials, the Office of the First 
Minister, International Relations and Trade 
officials.  

P
ack P

age 77



7 
 

Programme for Government 
2021 to 2026 Commitment 

Indicative steps and timelines Coordination and integration 

Provide effective, high quality and sustainable healthcare 

The coronavirus pandemic has shown our health service at its best, but it has also created extraordinary pressures on staff and 
services. We want to create a 21st century NHS by investing in the post-Covid recovery, tackling health inequalities, improving 
mental health provision and focussing on prevention. We will continue to support our health workers, protect the NHS, deepen 
the integration of services, improve accessibility, reduce carbon in the design of new facilities, extend the use of new 
technologies and support people to live healthy lives. 

Roll out child and adolescent 
mental health services ‘in-reach’ 
in schools across Wales 

This is part of broader work encompassing our 
whole school approach to emotional and 
mental wellbeing.  
 
Local Health Boards (LHB) submitted 
proposals to use funding and establish 
services in June 2021, with funding allocations 
agreed in July 2021. LHBs are at different 
stages of implementation and all plan on 
having all or part of their service established 
by early 2022. 

Building on the publication of statutory 
framework guidance for schools and local 
authorities in March 2021, we will continue 
to support and embed this work using our 
£9million budget which has been jointly 
agreed by the Minister for Education and 
Welsh Language and the Minister for Health 
and Social Services, recognising the cross-
cutting nature of this work. This work is also 
a key part of our response to the 
coronavirus pandemic, as we recognise the 
emotional and mental impact is likely to 
outlast the physical impact of the pandemic.  

 

Tackling poverty and promoting prosperity 

The action of the Education and Welsh Language portfolio supports the Welsh Government’s collective ambitions to tackle poverty 

and promote prosperity for all. Our programme of education reforms, actions to mitigate the impact of the coronavirus pandemic 

and specific areas of work targeted at reducing inequalities and improving educational outcomes for all learners will play an 

important role in realising our ambitions. The Education and Welsh language sectors will work closely with and support the Minister 

for Social Justice’ commitment to coordinated and integrated action to tackle poverty and promote prosperity.  

P
ack P

age 78



8 
 

For example, the Pupil Development Grant (PDG) not only plays an important role in addressing inequity in education, but to our 

wider tackling poverty agenda. Our focus on community schools policy development will see us consider how community schools 

can support improved attainment, aspirations, wellbeing and educational outcomes for all our learners, particularly those who are 

disadvantaged by poverty. This will impact across portfolio areas and will require particular close working with the Social Justice 

portfolio. The Minority Ethnic, Gypsy, Roma and Traveller (MEGRT) grant provides dedicated funding to support local authorities to 

improve the educational outcomes for Minority Ethnic, Gypsy, Roma and Traveller learners. For 2021-2022, an additional £1million 

was approved, bringing the total funding to £11million. The Gypsy, Roma and Traveller guidance for schools is being updated and is 

due to be completed by July 2022, in line with our Race Equality Action Plan. 

 

The Welsh language and shared delivery of Cymraeg 2050 

The Welsh Government’s Welsh Language Division works across government to support our ambitions for the Welsh language in 

Wales and the world. There are a number of commitments listed in the Programme for Government which are key to the delivery of 

Cymraeg 2050 but which sit outside of the portfolio. Officials will work with colleagues to ensure these commitments contribute fully 

to the ambitions and delivery of Cymraeg 2050. These include: 

 Creating a Welsh Language Communities Housing Plan;  

 Giving Transport for Wales new powers to better integrate rail, bus and active travel and regulate from them to meet Welsh 

language standards;  

 Increasing apprenticeships in care and recruiting more Welsh speakers; and 

 Working to protect Welsh place names. 

 

 

 

 

 

P
ack P

age 79



9 
 

The following Programme for Government commitments within the Education and Welsh Language portfolio are under the 

responsibility of the Minister for Education and the Welsh Language.  

Programme for Government 2021 to 2026 
Commitment 

Indicative steps and timelines 

Strengthen the Youth Engagement and 
Progression Framework (YEPF) 

Earlier this year, to inform approaches aimed at strengthening the Framework, 
we undertook consultation and engagement with stakeholders, including young 
people. We will shortly publish the outcome of this exercise and draw on the 
findings as part of a planned redraft and publication of the revised Youth 
Engagement and Progression Framework this year. Next, in collaboration with 
key partners, we will revise and strengthen the Early Identification guidance that 
sits alongside the Framework, and which will better support the early 
identification of young people that have disengaged, or are at risk of 
disengaging from their education, employment or training. Looking forward, and 
linked to the Young Person’s Guarantee, further consideration will also be given 
to those elements of the Framework which are aimed at strengthening the 
identification and support offered to 19-25 year olds. 

 

Invest more than £1.5 billion in the next phase 
of the 21st Century Schools and Colleges 
Programme 

The successfully established 21st Century Schools and Colleges investment 
programme will continue to be open to all local authorities and further education 
institutions in Wales to support projects that deliver improvement in our school 
and college infrastructure to meet the current and future demand for places and 
address issues of poor condition and suitability for delivery of the curriculum. Up 
to 200 schools and colleges will be refurbished or replaced by the end of the 
second wave of investment.  

With local authorities, transform learning 
environments, develop net-zero carbon schools 
and open up school facilities for local 
communities 

Through our 21st Century Schools and Colleges infrastructure Programme the 
Welsh Government and local authority partners are investing in new educational 
facilities which are net zero carbon as well as retrofitting net zero carbon 
technology to existing building infrastructure.  
 
We have been working with delivery partners and the construction sector in 
developing a Decarbonisation Route Map for the education sector. The Route 

P
ack P

age 80



10 
 

Programme for Government 2021 to 2026 
Commitment 

Indicative steps and timelines 

Map is due to be published in September 2021. Additional support to the sector 
will be provided through the establishment of an Education Decarbonisation 
Best Practice Group. This Group will support schools, colleges and universities 
in the decarbonisation of the education estate in Wales. 
 
Under the first phase (£15million) of community hubs investment, 21 projects 
will be delivered (of which 10 are already complete) providing enhanced 
facilities and support services to their local communities.  
  
A review of the building design standards that underpin the 21st Century schools 
and colleges programme in the context of delivering the new curriculum and 
community schools is under consideration.  

Review Adult Education to increase the number 
of learners in Wales 
 
[including reference to employability plan] 

The review will seek to scope out improvements and increases to the current 
adult learning offer across sectors. The current Policy Statement for Adult 
Learning in Wales 2017 supports adult learning and the provision of Essential 
Skills, and is primarily targeted at FEIs and the Adult Learning Network.   
 
Learning and Work Institute are currently reviewing the policy and delivery 
landscape and also opportunities to improve ESOL provision. A review of 
Family Learning across Wales is being undertaken to understand what has 
survived Covid. Opportunities to work with Community Focussed Schools will 
be explored in this area. 
 
A new funding methodology was introduced in 2020/21 to ensure equity across 
sectors, based on population and educational / income deprivation. Funding is 
allocated to local authorities via the Community Learning Grant.  
 
Good progress has been made improving links between the adult learning 
sector, the Adult Learning Network and Regional Skills Partnerships (RSP) to 
ensure the adult learning sector is represented and reflected in RSP priorities. 

P
ack P

age 81



11 
 

Programme for Government 2021 to 2026 
Commitment 

Indicative steps and timelines 

Adult learning has an important role to play in developing the low level skills that 
will enable learners to progress to the higher level skills needed to improve the 
economy.   
 
In addition, the Wales Centre for Public Policy has been asked to conduct a 
review of lifelong learning in Wales. The project will analyse how lifelong 
learning in Wales can best be provided and how it can help to meet the Welsh 
Government’s broader policy objectives. The work will inform the next Welsh 
Government’s thinking on the future of lifelong learning policy as we move 
ahead with our post-compulsory education and training reforms. 
 
Employability Plan 
Work is in progress to assess the ambitions of our lifelong learning commitment, 
and progress to close qualification gaps with the UK at all levels by 2028. This 
is against a backdrop of significant reductions in funding part time learning and 
increased future investment in skills and qualifications in England.  
 

Provide additional counselling provision 
throughout the next [current] Senedd term 

In 2021-22 we have made an additional £1.75million available to local 
authorities to support improvements in and expansion of counselling 
provision. In particular we know that children and young people’s emotional 
wellbeing will have been adversely affected as a result of the pandemic. 
Between January and March 2022 we will work with local authorities to assess 
the impact this additional funding has had. In addition we have contracted 
Cardiff University to review counselling provision to ensure that the current 
service is able to meet current and anticipated future demand; and to examine 
the need for provision of suitable interventions for children below the current 
Yr6 Counselling threshold. The review has been impacted by the pandemic, 
though we currently expect it to report its findings in early 2022. 
 

P
ack P

age 82



12 
 

Programme for Government 2021 to 2026 
Commitment 

Indicative steps and timelines 

Support schools and teachers to deliver our 
world-leading Curriculum for Wales 

Curriculum for Wales timeline - recognising specific challenges faced by 
secondary schools during the pandemic, secondary schools have the option to 
continue with existing plans to start in 2022 with Year 7, or to start a year later 
in 2023 with Years 7 and 8 together. Roll out for primary schools remains at 
2022. Beyond 2023, the roll out of the Curriculum for Wales will follow on a year 
by year basis with the first qualifications designed specifically for the Curriculum 
for Wales being awarded in 2026/2027 academic year as planned.  
 
Curriculum for Wales support - shortly, we will update the “Journey to 2022” to 
provide comprehensive support for schools on the steps they should be taking 
in preparation for curriculum rollout. We will ensure appropriate guidance is 
made available across multiple topics including for religion and values and 
ethics, careers and relationships and sexuality education. This additional 
guidance was consulted on during the summer and will be finalised by the end 
of 2021. Similarly, we will finalise guidance to support practitioners working with 
learners at the beginning of the learning continuum and provide a curriculum 
and assessment framework for funded non-maintained nursery settings to 
adopt. 
 
We will ensure supporting legislation for the Curriculum for Wales is in place 
following Royal Assent of the Curriculum and Assessment Act earlier in 2021.  
 
National Network - we have committed to establishing and supporting the 
practitioner-led operation of the National Network for implementation. The 
Network will be launched in early autumn 2021 and will start by looking at 
fundamentals of a school’s curriculum, including learners’ progression. 
 
Renew and Reform - In the summer we published the Renew and Reform Plan, 
setting out the approach to support learners, partners and the education system 
to move on from the disruption as a result of the pandemic. 

P
ack P

age 83



13 
 

Programme for Government 2021 to 2026 
Commitment 

Indicative steps and timelines 

Reduce unnecessary bureaucracy to support 
school leaders 

During Autumn term 2021, we will work with existing head teacher networks in 
relation to bureaucracy concerns and supplement this with wider engagement 
activity - with employers and trade unions, and with other devolved 
governments. The intention will be to have a strong evidence base; based on a 
good understanding of activities and priorities being taken forward elsewhere 
and information on what has worked well in this area. We will publish a 
summary of the background research, and identify, and where appropriate 
develop, resources to share with schools during summer term 2022. We will 
work with head teachers and wider stakeholders across the education system in 
Wales to develop and test proposals for short and medium-term actions, 
agreeing deliverables and an implementation plan by the autumn term 2022. 
Working in social partnership, we will then begin to implement agreed actions in 
a phased / prioritised way in the new academic year. 
 

Implement the new Additional Learning Needs 
Act [Additional Learning Needs and Education 
Tribunal (Wales) Act] 

 
The Additional Learning Needs (ALN) Code for Wales was issued in March 
alongside a number of regulations made under the ALNET Act. Implementation 
of the ALN system will be sequenced in its first year. Children who do not have 
an identified special educational need (SEN) or who are not awaiting or 
undergoing an SEN assessment, will move to the new ALN system from 1 
September 2021.  
 
For children who attend a maintained school and who have identified SEN via 
school action or school action plus, the ALN system will apply from 1 January 
2022, rather than September 2021. This will provide time for the sector to reflect 
on the guidance, undertake preparatory work and engage with children, in 
receipt of SEN provision via school action/school action plus, and their parents.  
 

P
ack P

age 84



14 
 

Programme for Government 2021 to 2026 
Commitment 

Indicative steps and timelines 

As our ALN reforms begin a key transition period, the Welsh Government will 
provide support for the effective implementation and embedding of the new ALN 
system across all relevant areas.  
  
We will focus on workforce development to ensure a highly skilled, ALN-aware 
workforce operates within which both ALNCos and non-ALNCos will be 
knowledgeable and skilled teachers of children and young people with 
additional learning needs. This will be supported by a new professional learning 
offer including a new national Masters in Education - ALN and a supply of 10 
newly qualified educational psychologists annually.  
 
We will focus on development of core skills and awareness raising, supporting 
all relevant stakeholders to be aware of and understand their responsibilities 
under the ALN Act. 
 

Expand the teaching of modern foreign 
languages in our schools 

We have a clear vision and strategy to support modern foreign language 
learning in Wales, set out within the Global Futures 2020-2022 strategic plan. 
The strategic aims and accompanying actions are taken forward by Welsh 
Government, regional education consortia and other key partners as we 
transition to the Curriculum for Wales in 2022.  
 
We are developing a set of proposals to expand support for modern foreign 
languages / international languages under our Global Future Action Plan. An 
evaluation of the existing plan will be completed during the autumn 2021 and 
advice on the next steps of the programme are expected to be submitted in 
early Spring 2022. 
 

Invest in the Pupil Development Grant 
The PDG plays a key role in tackling the impacts of poverty on educational 
attainment. We will continue to invest in the PDG and its constituent 

P
ack P

age 85



15 
 

Programme for Government 2021 to 2026 
Commitment 

Indicative steps and timelines 

components including PDG Access, working closely with our partners to support 
schools and settings to gain maximum benefit from the support provided. We 
will commission further evaluation of the PDG and work across portfolios to 
understand the impact this grant has not only on educational outcomes, but 
wider tackling poverty goals.  

Protect the Educational Maintenance Allowance 
(EMA) for young learners 

The EMA Scheme has been maintained for eligible new and continuing 
students studying in the 2021/22 academic year. EMA is demand led and 
provides a financial incentive of £30 per week to encourage young people 
(aged 16-19) from lower income households to continue in full-time education 
beyond compulsory school age. EMA aims to help with the associated costs of 
further education. An eligible student must be following an eligible further 
education course up to level 3 at a recognised educational institution with 
learning sessions (a class, or other taught or guided study session) consisting 
of at least 12 hours per week. 
 
The EMA income thresholds and grant levels have remained the same since the 
2011/12 academic year. 
 

Maintain our commitment to provide free 
breakfasts for all primary school pupils 

Wales led the way in the UK by introducing free breakfasts in primary schools in 
2004. Now, under the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013, 
local authorities have a duty to ensure that the provision of primary school free 
breakfasts continues. The Welsh Government has produced statutory guidance 
on the provision of free school breakfasts in primary schools, and as part of our 
plans to revise the Healthy Eating in Schools (Nutritional Standards and 
Requirements) (Wales) Regulations 2013 we will update the statutory guidance 
on free school breakfasts to make sure it reflects the latest scientific advice.  
 

P
ack P

age 86



16 
 

Programme for Government 2021 to 2026 
Commitment 

Indicative steps and timelines 

Appoint a Cabinet level Minister to develop and 
take forward the proposals of the Youth Board 
for Wales 

The Welsh Government will continue to support the work of the Interim Youth 
Work Board. We will consider the recommendations of the Interim Board once 
published in September and formally respond by the end of 2021, with a view to 
beginning implementation of the agreed recommendations from January 2022 
onwards.  
 

Legislate for a new framework for youth 
services in Wales 

Support the democratic role of local authorities 
in education provision 

On the back of a range of reports over recent years looking at the role of local 
authorities and other strategic partners in relation to support for school leaders, 
Professional Learning, the induction of Newly Qualified Teachers, the impact of 
the professional standards and support for Teaching Assistants.  
 
We will in the first year explore current arrangements and the role of local 
authorities in relation to the range of statutory functions delivered by them. We 
will determine how these arrangements can be strengthened and provide 
advice to Ministers on priority areas for action. 
 

Promote parity of esteem between vocational 
and academic routes in Welsh education. 
Examine how a greater degree of federation 
can support educational leadership across 
Wales 

The Welsh Government is responding to Estyn recommendations following a 
Thematic Review report on partnership working concerning post 16 (year 11) 
transition/data sharing and officials are developing written agreements to 
underpin transition and curriculum planning drawing from the review.  
 
The Welsh Government is planning an independent review of the 16 – 19 
curriculum offer (to take place in 2022-23 financial year). In advance of that, 
and to support and provide an evidence base to inform the guiding principles, 
aims, coverage and depth of an independent review, officials have instructed 
Estyn to undertake a thematic review this year on the current curriculum offer 
16 – 19 and career choices at transition. 
 

P
ack P

age 87



17 
 

Programme for Government 2021 to 2026 
Commitment 

Indicative steps and timelines 

A review of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009, and legislative 
amendments required, will support our wider policy approach to parity of 
esteem between vocational and academic qualifications and routes. 
 

Explore how to strengthen professional learning 
communities 

We will explore how to strengthen professional learning communities through 
our National Approach to Professional Learning (NAPL) including through: 

 The refresh and development of the NAPL. 

 Funding support for professional learning at school level. 

 Expanding the National Professional Enquiry Project (NPEP) and network 
of research schools. 

 Exploring potential around the use of, and possible extension to, in service 
training (INSET) days beyond 2022.  

 Working with the National Academy for Educational Leadership to develop 
professional learning guidance and case studies for practitioners.  
 

Expand the role of the Coleg Cymraeg 
Cenedlaethol 

Welsh Government has provided an initial investment of £0.8million to the 
Coleg Cymraeg Cenedlaethol in 2021-22 for further education projects. Our 
commitment is to expand the role of the Coleg ensuring that additional sector 
areas and the apprenticeship sector will benefit during this Senedd term by 
building the sectors’ capacity through adequate staffing of full time equivalent 
tutors and assessors targeting first and second language Welsh speakers.  
    

Expand our Welsh language early years 
provision 

The Welsh Government continues to fund Mudiad Meithrin to deliver its Sefydlu 
a Symud (SAS) programme to expand provision in the early years as an access 
point to Welsh-medium education. The programme exceeded targets for its first 
3 years and has a current annual target of 12 new groups. The programme is 
also supported by: Mudiad Meithrin’s Cymraeg for Kids programme; workforce 
training through the apprenticeship scheme and ‘Cam wrth Gam’ schools 
programme; and its Academi training, development and learning programme.  

P
ack P

age 88



18 
 

Programme for Government 2021 to 2026 
Commitment 

Indicative steps and timelines 

Expand the Pupil Immersion Programme 

The pandemic has meant more families are relocating to Wales leading to a 
rapid increase in demand in applications for late language immersion provision. 
In addition, late immersion has been rolled out successfully in some areas to 
regain language skills lost during lockdowns. Evidence collated through local 
authority Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) have highlighted the need 
to:  

 expand late language immersion provision to meet increased demand; 
and,  

 to better support mainstream Welsh-medium schools settings to re-
immerse learners already in the system, and provide on-going support to 
maintain their skill levels.   

Ensuring all LAs have access to the pupil immersion programme would give all 
pupils equal access to language support across Wales. 
 

 

Introduce a pilot project which will incentivise 
young Welsh speakers to return from 
universities to help teach Welsh in schools 

The Welsh Government is working with the National Centre, Coleg Cymraeg 
Cenedlaethol and Universities to pilot three projects to incentivise young Welsh 
speakers to return from universities to help teach Welsh in schools. One project 
will be led by the National Centre and the other two via the Coleg Cymraeg 
Cenedlaethol and universities. The three projects will work in tandem targeting 
undergraduates and graduates to support the teaching of Welsh in schools and 
to encourage the use of Welsh in schools. It is hoped that the projects will 
encourage students to move into teaching. 
 

Address the recommendations from the Black, 
Asian and Minority Ethnic communities, 
Contributions and Cynefin in the new 
Curriculum Working Group 

To support the implementation of the recommendations of the Working Group 
the Welsh Government has: 

 Agreed that the Chair of the Working Group, Professor Williams OBE will 
support the Welsh Government with the implementation of the 
recommendations in an advisory role;  

P
ack P

age 89



19 
 

Programme for Government 2021 to 2026 
Commitment 

Indicative steps and timelines 

 Established an internal working group to implement the recommendations 
which are overseen by a steering board of which Professor Williams is a 
member; and 

 Continued to engage with external stakeholders and members of the 
working group. 

 
Current position:  

 The Welsh Government is developing a strategy to increase recruitment 
levels into Initial Teacher Education and subsequently into the wider 
workforce. The initial draft strategy will identify steps that can be taken to 
support an increased representation in the workforce and is expected in 
autumn 2021; 

 Several reports have been commissioned into the impacts of the under-
representation in the workforce and officials are currently reviewing the 
evidence and recommendations from this research. 

 
Proposed action: 

 Review existing English-medium Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic teaching 
and learning resources and respond to any recommendations the working 
group may issue;  

 Commission new learning resources; and 

 Work with colleagues to ensure the working group’s recommendations are 
linked with the education elements of the Welsh Government’s Race 
Equality Action Plan.  

 

Provide free access to the Urdd Eisteddfod in 
2022 [Economy portfolio with EPS Group lead] 

This is a cross-portfolio action between Education and Economy. Funding is 
sought to allow free access to the Denbighshire Urdd Eisteddfod in 2022 on its 
centenary anniversary. Offering free access to the Urdd Eisteddfod will attract a 

P
ack P

age 90



20 
 

Programme for Government 2021 to 2026 
Commitment 

Indicative steps and timelines 

new audience to the festival and therefore to the language, from every stage of 
the language continuum and every background.  
 

Expand the use of shared and degree 
apprenticeships  
 
[Economy and Education working 
collaboratively to deliver this action] 
 

Shared Apprenticeships 
We have developed two new Construction shared apprenticeship projects that 
have started to recruit apprentices for this academic year. The Welsh 
Government is working with stakeholders to scope the options to expand 
shared apprenticeship projects within the Creative sector for this year in south 
and north Wales. We are also scoping the demand for a Digital project within 
the Valleys Taskforce and an Engineering project with possible delivery from 
August 2022. 
 
Degree Apprenticeships 
We are working with stakeholders to prepare options for expansion. Expansion 
would be dependent on priorities, budget, value for money considerations and 
the findings from the independent evaluation. Decisions are expected to be 
made in Autumn 2021 on the scope of the expansion. 
 

Expand Personal Learning Accounts (PLA) 
[Economy and Education portfolio joint action] 

Expanding Personal Learning Accounts is a joint Ministerial portfolio 
responsibility between Economy and Education and Welsh Language.  
 
Indicative Steps and Milestones 

- 6,200 learners in 2020/21 academic year  
- 7,000 learners in 2021/22 academic year 
- Evaluation to be published autumn 2022 

 
All courses and qualifications delivered through the PLA programme are 

endorsed by Regional Skills Partnerships to ensure the provision meets 

regional skills needs and addresses skills gaps. We have allocated £2 million of 

P
ack P

age 91



21 
 

Programme for Government 2021 to 2026 
Commitment 

Indicative steps and timelines 

the overall programme funding to support training and skills in the ‘green’ 

economy, including green construction and electric and hybrid vehicle 

technology https://gov.wales/new-college-courses-jobs-green-economy. Similar 

initiatives are anticipated in future. 

 
Discussions are taking place with a range of other policy leads across Welsh 
Government, including foundational economy, logistics, decarbonisation and 
childcare to see how the PLA offer and provision might support these sectors. 
 

 

P
ack P

age 92

https://gov.wales/new-college-courses-jobs-green-economy

	Agenda
	2.1 Committee Business timetable
	2.2 Welsh Government Draft Budget 2022 - 2023
	2.3 Committee forward work programme
	2.4 Priorities for the Children, Young People and Education Committee
	2.5 General scrutiny of the Minister for Education and Welsh Language
	2.6 General scrutiny of the Minister for Health and Social Services
	2.7 Joint working with the Children, Young People and Education Committee in the Sixth Senedd
	2.8 Committee Business timetable
	2.9 Curriculum for Wales
	Translation - CYPE(6)-02-21 - Paper to note 9

	2.10 Priorities for the Children, Young People and Education Committee
	2.11 Priorities for the Children, Young People and Education Committee
	4 Consideration of the Legislative Consent Memorandum on the Skills and Post-16 Education Bill
	Legal advice Note
	Research Brief

	6 General scrutiny session with the Minister for Education and Welsh Language
	Paper 1 - Welsh Government written evidence
	Evidence paper MEWL to CYPE - En
	Annex A - Coordination of Programme for Government commitments - FINAL





